
	

	

The	Meeting	of	the	Nibley	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	held	at	Nibley	City	Hall,	
455	West	3200	South,	Nibley,	Utah	on	Wednesday,	February	24,	2016.	
	
The	following	actions	were	made	during	the	meeting:	
	
Commissioner	Green	motioned	to	approve	the	application	for	a	conditional	
use	permit	and	business	license	for	MSJ	Flooring,	located	at	110	W	3200	S,	
applicant	Scott	Jones;	with	the	condition	that	the	applicant	bring	a	letter	from	
the	home	owner	stating	that	he	was	aware	the	applicant	was	running	the	
business	from	this	home.	Commissioner	Swenson	seconded	the	motion.	The	
motion	passed	unanimously	4-0;	with	Commissioner	Green,	Commissioner	
Swenson,	Commissioner	Davenport,	and	Commissioner	Johnson	all	in	favor.	
	
Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	Co-Chair	Dave	Davenport	called	the	February	24,	
2016	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	meeting	to	order	at	5:32.	Those	in	
attendance	included	Commissioner	Dave	Davenport,	Commissioner	Bret	Swenson,	
Commissioner	Jim	Johnson,	and	Commissioner	Aaron	Bliesner.	Ms.	Shari	Phippen,	
Nibley	City	Planner,	was	also	present.	Commissioner	Carol	Albrect	was	excused	
from	the	meeting.	
	
Approval	of	the	1-27-16	and	2-10-16	meeting	minutes	and	the	evening’s	
agenda	
Commissioner	Davenport	asked	for	general	consent	to	suspend	the	agenda	in	order	
to	delay	approval	of	the	previous	meeting’s	minutes.	General	consent	was	given.	
	
General	consent	was	given	for	the	evening’s	agenda.	
	
Commissioner	Davenport	acknowledged	Nibley’s	new	Planning	and	Zoning	
Commissioner,	Jim	Johnson.	He	noted	that	Aaron	Bliesner	was	present	and	
participating	in	a	non-voting	capacity.	Ms.	Phippen	said	Commissioner	Bliesner	was	
anticipating	his	appointment	as	an	alternating	member	of	the	Planning	and	Zoning	
Commission.	Commissioner	Davenport	said	if	the	ordinance	was	passed	then	there	
would	be	two	alternate	positions	available.	
	
Commissioner	Bill	Green	arrived	at	5:34	p.m.	
	
Commissioner	Johnson	introduced	himself	to	the	other	Planning	and	Zoning	
Commissioners.	Commissioner	Johnson	said	he	was	an	avid	BYU	fan	to	the	dismay	of	
Commissioner	Green.	Commissioner	Johnson	said	he	had	a	development	business	in	
Washington	D.C.	and	was	a	civil	engineer.	He	discussed	his	education	and	said	he	
served	as	the	Director	of	the	National	Association	of	Home	Builders	so	had	a	lot	of	
experience	working	with	Federal,	State,	and	local	governments.	He	described	his	
experience	building	houses	in	Nibley	versus	building	houses	in	the	D.C.	area.	
	



	

	 2	

The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	discussed	that	they	couldn’t	approve	the	1-
27-16	minutes	because	Commissioner	Swenson	was	not	present	for	that	meeting	
and	there	weren’t	enough	Commission	members	present	to	approve	those	minutes.	
	
The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	discussed	that	they	couldn’t	approve	the	2-
10-16	minutes	because	Commissioner	Green	was	not	present	for	that	meeting	and	
there	enough	Commission	members	present	to	approve	those	minutes.	
Commissioner	Davenport	directed	Deputy	Recorder	Bodily	to	correct	a	name	in	the	
2-10-16	minutes.	
	
Conditional	Use	Permit/	Business	License	
MSJ	Flooring—discussion	and	consideration	of	an	application	for	a	home	
occupation	(flooring	installation)	located	at	110	W	3200	S	(Applicant:	Scott	
Jones)	
Mr.	Scott	Jones	was	not	present	at	the	meeting.	
	
Ms.	Phippen	said	Nibley’s	home	occupation	definition	was:	
	
“The	use	of	a	portion	of	a	dwelling	as	an	office,	studio,	or	workroom	for	occupations	
which	are	conducted	in	the	home	and	are	incidental	to	the	primary	use	as	a	home	or	
residence;	provided	additionally	that:	1)	individuals	who	perform	occupation	related	

activities	at	the	home	occupation	residence	must	also	live	at	that	residence;	2)	
individuals	who	do	not	live	at	the	home	occupation	residence	must	not	report	to	that	
residence	for	occupation	related	activities;	and	3)	the	occupation	shall	not	use	any	
accessory	building,	yard,	or	any	space	outside	the	main	building	not	normally	
associated	with	residential	use.	Applications	meeting	these	criteria	may	.	.	.	be	
classified	a	home	occupation	rather	than	being	classified	by	the	actual	activity	

associated	with	the	business,	with	the	following	exceptions.	Child	daycare/preschool	
for	more	than	eight	(8)	children	shall	be	classified	as	a	commercial	daycare	rather	
than	a	home	occupation.	In	addition,	activities	involving	the	sale,	service,	leasing	
and/or	rental	of	motor	vehicles	shall	not	be	classified	as	a	home	occupation.”	

	
Ms.	Phippen	said	if	a	business	met	the	home	occupation	definition	then	it	may	be	
licensed	as	a	home	occupation,	without	regard	for	the	type	of	business	actually	
being	conducted,	provided	that	the	business	is	legal	and	not	otherwise	specifically	
prohibited	by	ordinance.	
	
Ms.	Phippen	said	that	Mr.	Falslev’s	application	stated	that	he	will	not	have	any	
outside	employees,	all	work	would	be	done	offsite,	and	he	would	have	no	business	
related	vehicles	or	signage.	Ms.	Phippen	said	the	business	met	the	requirements	to	
be	classified	and	approved	as	a	home	occupation.	The	property	was	zoned	
Residential	R-2	and	the	Nibley	City	Land	Use	Chart	allowed	for	home	occupations	in	
the	R-2	zone	as	a	conditional	use.	
	



	

	 3	

Ms.	Phippen	said	that	because	the	business	met	the	definition	of	a	home	occupation,	
she	recommend	approving	the	conditional	use	permit	and	business	license	with	no	
suggested	conditions.	
	
Commissioner	Davenport	observed	when	researching	this	application	that	the	
property	was	in	an	R-1	zone.	Ms.	Phippen	said	she	had	been	mistaken	and	that	the	
home	was	in	an	R-1	zone.	Commissioner	Davenport	said	he	had	also	noticed	that	the	
homeowner	was	William	Schjelderup.	Ms.	Phippen	said	the	Jones’	rented	the	home.	
Commissioner	Davenport	asked	if	they	had	formalized	the	requirement	to	have	a	
letter	from	the	homeowner	when	a	home	renter	requests	a	business	license	and	
conditional	use	permit.	Ms.	Phippen	said	it	hadn’t	been	formalized.	
	
Commissioner	Green	made	a	motion	to	approve	the	application	for	a	conditional	use	
permit	and	business	license	for	MSJ	Flooring,	located	at	110	W	3200	S,	applicant	
Scott	Jones	with	the	condition	that	the	applicant	bring	a	letter	from	the	home	owner	
stating	that	he	was	aware	the	applicant	was	running	the	business	from	this	home.	
Commissioner	Swenson	seconded	the	motion.	
	
Commissioner	Johnson	asked	why	the	applicant	needed	to	come	to	the	city	for	a	
business	license	and	conditional	use	permit.	He	noted	that	the	applicant	would	
basically	have	no	business	activity	occurring	at	the	home.	Ms.	Phippen	clarified	that	
Nibley	City	ordinance	required	this	so	that	the	city	was	able	to	ensure	activities	
being	conducted	out	of	home	were	not	unduly	impacting	the	neighborhood.	
Commissioner	Bliesner	said	that	part	of	this	requirement	was	that	the	business	
usually	was	registering	with	the	State	for	an	EIN	number	and	becoming	a	legal	
entity.	He	said	the	business	would	need	a	tax	ID	number	and	that	Nibley	was	
essentially	providing	a	service	to	satisfy	the	conditions	of	the	state.	
	
The	motion	passed	unanimously	4-0;	with	Commissioner	Green,	Commissioner	
Swenson,	Commissioner	Davenport,	and	Commissioner	Johnson	all	in	favor.	
	
Discussion	
Discussion	and	consideration	of	an	ordinance	regulating	home	occupations	in	
Nibley	City	
Ms.	Phippen	said	she	and	Nibley	City	Manager,	David	Zook	had	discussed	motor	
vehicle	sales	and	service	as	a	home	occupation	business.	She	felt	the	intent	was	to	
not	allow	mechanics	shops	out	of	people’s	homes	but	wondered	if	Nibley	could	
differentiate	between	types	of	motor	vehicle	service	businesses	and	make	
allowances	for	non-mechanic	or	body	repair	businesses.	She	admitted	that	this	
stemmed	from	a	proposed	application,	which	Ms.	Phippen	said	she	felt	merited	
further	discussion.	Ms.	Phippen	described	the	nature	of	the	business.		
	
Ms.	Phippen	said	she	would	like	to	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	to	discuss	
the	possibility	of	clarifying	Nibley’s	prohibition	on	the	auto	repair	as	it	relates	to	
home	occupations,	with	the	idea	of	permitting	certain	motor	vehicle	services,	or	
those	related	to	installation	of	equipment,	as	home	occupations;	provided	that	



	

	 4	

certain	conditions	are	met,	prior	to	the	ordinance	going	to	the	City	Council	for	their	
review.	Ms.	Phippen	said	another	discussion	was	that	Nibley	didn’t	allow	individual	
who	didn’t	live	at	a	home	to	perform	activities	related	to	a	business	and	asked	if	
they	wanted	to	make	any	exceptions	for	a	limited	number	of	immediate	family	
members.	
	
Commissioner	Bliesner	said	he	had	come	prepared	to	vote	to	not	allow	automotive	
work.	He	said	there	where	significant	environmental	issues	which	were	regulated	
by	the	State.	He	felt	this	gave	the	opportunity	to	“fly	under	the	radar”	by	working	
out	of	a	house.	He	also	said	there	were	also	OSHA	regulations	and	that	mechanics	
shops	were	fairly	regulated	and	open	to	inspection	and	he	didn’t	want	to	see	anyone	
“flying	under	the	radar.”	Commissioner	Johnson	said	he	felt	one	of	the	most	
unattractive	things	in	a	neighborhood	were	cars	sitting	about	and	he	felt	there	
should	be	places	where	this	kind	of	business	was	operated.	He	said	this	needed	to	be	
confined	and	not	sit	out	where	it	can’t	be	regulated.	Ms.	Phippen	said	she	was	
strictly	talking	about	installation	in	cars.	The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	
debated	this.	The	general	opinion	of	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	was	that	
they	shouldn’t	allow	this	because	it	was	too	difficult	to	draw	the	line.	Commissioner	
Bliesner	said	he	felt	this	discussion	was	expanding	the	commerce	of	a	property	and	
not	the	use	by	the	owner;	he	said	this	slid	more	towards	commerce	and	detracted	
from	the	residential	character.	Commissioner	Johnson	felt	they	needed	to	be	
sensitive	to	keeping	the	characteristics	of	the	neighborhood	environment.	
Commissioner	Swenson	said	he	was	conflicted	on	changing	the	ordinance	and	didn’t	
know	where	they	could	draw	the	line.	Commissioner	Green	said	he	was	against	
making	any	changes.	Commissioner	Johnson	said	he	was	not	in	favor	of	cluttering	up	
a	neighborhood	any	more.	He	said	opening	a	neighborhood	to	a	parade	of	cars	was		
taking	away	the	character	of	the	neighborhood.	Commissioner	Davenport	said	he	
echoed	Commissioner	Johnson’s	comments	but	said	if	Ms.	Phippen	and	Mr.	Zook	
were	to	develop	some	language	that	would	be	meaningful	and	that	would	allow	and	
control		something	like	this	then	they	would	be	willing	to	listen.	Commissioner	
Davenport	said	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	would	like	to	see	any	language	
differentiating	between	auto	service	and	sales	before	it	was	sent	to	City	Council.	
	
Discussion	and	consideration	of	an	ordinance	amending	the	Nibley	City	
Planning	Commission	
Ms.	Phippen	said	Councilmember	Jacobsen	and	the	City	Council	wanted	to	have	the	
opinion	of	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	on	the	record	regarding	this	
ordinance	consideration.	Ms.	Phippen	said	it	was	not	uncommon	for	a	city	to	
appoint	alternates	to	their	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	who	don’t	vote	on	
every	matter	but	were	invited	to	participate	in	discussions	when	there	wasn’t	a	
quorum	of	the	Commission,	or	a	Commissioner	felt	the	need	to	recuse	themselves,	
or	occasions	when	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	was	debating	weightier	
matters	where	they	would	like	the	opinion	of	a	full	Commission.	Ms.	Phippen	said	
that	Mayor	Dustin	had	asked	her	to	include	language	in	the	Planning	and	Zoning	
Commission	Ordinance	to	allow	two	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	alternates	
and	the	regulations	that	outlined	the	terms	of	an	alternate;	that	City	Council	



	

	 5	

members	may	not	be	appointed	to	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission;	and	
designating	the	practice	of	city	staff	reporting	the	actions	of	the	Planning	and	Zoning	
Commission	to	the	City	Council.	Ms.	Phippen	displayed	the	changes	to	the	ordinance	
that	were	being	proposed	to	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	and	public	
present.	
	
Ms.	Phippen	and	Commissioner	Davenport	discussed	the	pros	of	having	alternate	
Planning	and	Zoning	Commissioners;	the	probable	guarantee	of	always	having	a	
quorum	present	for	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	meetings	and	being	able	to	
address	the	citizen’s	applications	in	a	timely	manner;	establishing	a	field	to	“farm”	
Commissioners	from	when	replacements	are	needed;	and	easing	the	requirements	
placed	on	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	members.	Ms.	Phippen	said	the	
alternates	would	be	encouraged	to	attend	as	many	meetings	as	possible	so	that	they	
can	be	trained	and	remain	informed.	
	
Commissioner	Swenson	questioned	whether	alternates	were	necessary.	
Commissioner	Green	described	a	meeting	that	had	to	be	held	via	teleconference	in	
order	to	have	a	quorum	and	said	he	had	no	problem	with	having	alternates.	
Commissioner	Bliesner	said	alternates	were	necessary	because	there	were	conflicts	
or	exceptions,	which	seemed	to	happen	all	at	the	same	time,	which	made	it	difficult	
to	get	business	done.	Commissioner	Johnson	questioned	the	incentive	of	being	an	
alternate	and	wondered	how	attractive	that	position	would	be?	He	stated	would	
rather	a	see	a	7-person	commission	that	only	required	three	votes	because	they	
would	have	7	people	that	were	committed	on	the	bench.	Commissioner	Swenson	
suggested	that	one	alternate	would	be	the	best	route.	Commissioner	Davenport	said	
he	was	amendable	to	an	alternate;	he	agreed	with	one	alternate	instead	of	two	to	
avoid	confusion.	Commissioner	Johnson	agreed	with	Commissioner	Swenson’s	
suggestion	of	one	alternate.	Commissioner	Davenport	felt	they	should	have	one	
alternate	that	only	participated	when	there	was	a	vacancy	from	one	of	the	Planning	
and	Zoning	Commission	members.	He	said	this	would	also	be	budget	neutral.	
Commissioner	Bliesner	said	he	had	pictured	the	alternate	as	only	covering	absences.	
	
The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	supported	the	action	that	members	of	the	City	
Council	couldn’t	serve	on	the	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission.	
	
The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	supported	that	they	should	designate	city	
staff	to	give	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	reports	to	the	City	Council.	
	
The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	supported	a	system	of	one	alternate	with	the	
alternate	participating	in	the	event	that	there	is	a	vacancy	on	the	Planning	and	
Zoning	Commission,	even	if	there	will	be	a	quorum	present.	
	
Commissioner	Bliesner	discussed	the	possibility	of	the	Chair	and	Vice-Chair	being	
absent.	He	said	the	alternate	shouldn’t	act	as	chair	and	that	the	chair	position	should	
fall	to	the	most	senior	Commissioner.	Commissioner	Swenson	suggested	that	the	
Commissioners	who	were	present	could	elect	a	chair;	he	said	they	had	used	this	



	

	 6	

practice	in	the	past.	The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	discussed	the	term	of	a	
Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	alternate.	
	
Workshop	
Annual	training	on	Utah’s	Open	&	Public	Meetings	Act	
The	Planning	and	Zoning	Commission	took	a	five-minute	break	at	7:00	p.m.	The	
meeting	resumed	at	7:05	p.m.	
	
Ms.	Phippen	showed	a	PowerPoint	presentation	that	was	created	by	Nibley	City	
Treasurer,	Stephen	Nelson.	This	presentation	summarized	what	the	Open	and	
Public	Meetings	Act	did,	who	was	required	to	follow	the	OPMA,	the	definition	of	a	
meeting,	if	a	meeting	can	be	held	without	people	in	the	same	room,	when	a	meeting	
can	be	closed	to	the	public,	how	a	meeting	is	closed,	what	is	forbidden	during	a	
closed	meeting,	public	notification,	exceptions	to	giving	notice,	if	minutes	are	
required	in	open	and	closed	meetings,	if	minutes	are	public	record,	how	the	open	
meetings	law	is	often	broken,	and	who	enforced	the	law.	
	
Commissioner	Bliesner	asked	Ms.	Phippen	to	speak	concerning	email	
communication	between	Commissioners.	Ms.	Phippen	said	attorney	Dave	Church	
discouraged	deliberation	and	discussion	between	Commissioners	via	email.	She	said	
it	violated	the	spirit	of	the	law.	She	said	it	wasn’t	against	the	law	but	was	
discouraged.	
	
Ms.	Phippen	said	she	would	email	each	Planning	and	Zoning	Commissioner	a	link	to	
a	video	presentation	by	Dave	Church	concerning	the	OPMA	and	encouraged	them	to	
view	it.	
	
There	was	general	consent	to	adjourn	at	7:26	p.m.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Attest:	_________________________________________	
	 	 	 	 	 	 Deputy	City	Recorder	


